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Board of Directors
Victorville Water District
Victorville, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Victorville Water District
(“District™, a subsidiary disirict of the City of Victorville, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2009, as listed in the table of contents. These financial staternents are the responsibility of the
management of the Victorville Water District. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit,

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the Victorville Water District, as of June 30, 2009 and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows of the District for the period then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Victorville Water District has not presented Management’s Discussion and Analysis that the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board has determined is necessary to supplement, although
not required to be part of, the basic financial statements.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated January
29, 2010 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements,
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

ﬂ?ﬁy@ Lo o o e Lo, /2

Irvine, California
January 29, 2010
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- - VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009
Assets Total
Current assets:
Cash and investments (note 2) $ 8,401,449
Cash and investments with fiscal agent {note 2} 6,663,198
Accounts receivable, net 4,524 865
Interest receivable 144,032
Due from other governments 3,103,698
Inventory 212,619
Prepaid items 2,249,983
Total current assets . 25,299,844
Noncurrent assets:
Advances to City of Victorville (note 4) 21,929,420
Deferred charges, net {(note 5) 490,982
Non-depreciable capital assets (note 3) 21,704,558
Depreciable capital assets, net (note 3) 148,773,062
192,898,022
- Total assets 218,197,866
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,219,493
‘ Interest payable 282,224
Deferred revenue 1,927,813
; Deposits payable 939,195
| Long-term liabilities, due within one year (note 6) 687,964
Total current liabilities 6,056,689
| Noncurrent liabilities:
‘ Long-term liabilities, due in more than one year (note 6) 15,272,272
Total noncurrent liabilitics 15,272,272
Total liabilities 21,328,961
Net assets:
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (note 8) 162,345,335
Restricted for capital asset construction 1,004,108
Restricted for debt service 773,962
Unrestricted 32,745,500
Total net assets $ 196,868,005
: See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
W 5
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended June 30, 2009

Total
Operating revenues:
Water sales $ 13,613,711
Meter and service fees 8,138,360
Other 3,358
Total operating revenues 21,755429
Operating expenses:
Personnel services 6,561,191
Maintenance and operations 6,853,703
Production costs 8,275,857
Depreciation 6,855,826
Total operating expenses 28,546,579
Operating income (loss) {6,791,150)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Intergovernmentat 2,297,497
Investment income 861,239
Interest expense (688,823)
Argenic surcharge 542,174
Post employment benefits adjustment (241,072)
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 380,530
Other revenue (expenses) 27,934
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 3,209,479
Income (loss) before transfers and capital contributions (3,581,671)
Capital contributions:
Comnection fees 1,355,121
Alternate water source fees 597,337
State grants 1,686,205
Developer contributed assets 3,875,275

Total contributions and transfers

Change in net assets

See accompanying notes o the basic financial statements.

3

7,514,028

3,932,357
Net assets at beginning of year, as restated (note 10) 192,936,548
Net assets at end of year $196,868,005
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT

o,

Year ended June 30, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash paymenis to supphers for goods and services
Cash payments fo other governments
Nonoperating niscellaneous revenue received
Net cash provided by (used for) operaiing activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from County of San Bernardino
Cash paid to City of Victorville
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital
financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related fmancing activities:
Cash payments 1o acquire capital assets
Cashreceived from capital restricied revenue
Cash received for capital grauts
Principal paid on capital-reluted debt
Interest paid on capital-related debt
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and
related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on investments
Net cegh provided by fnvesting activities
Nel increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year, as restated (note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating ncoms to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating Income (Joss)
Adjustments to reconcite operafing income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Nonoperating riscellaneous revenue
(ain on sale of capital asset
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Inerease) decrease in due from other governments
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in accounis payable
Tncrease (decrease) in acorued labilities
Increase (decrease) in wnearned revenue
Increase (decrease) in depasits payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities
Noncash capjtal, financing and investing activities
Developer contributed capital assets
Total noncash capital, financing and investing sctivities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial siatements,

4

_ Statementof CashFlows

Total

$ 18,861,553
(6,817,024)
(13,967,869)
(2,692,519}
2793

{4,587,923)

1,150,097
{2£,929,420)

(20,779,323)

(10,600,085)
4,180,927
1,147,400

(614,959)

(569,536)
6,456,253

1,097,799
1,097,790

—_

(30,725,711)

45,790,358

§_15,064,647

$_(6,791,150)

6,855,826
27,934
380,530
(1,788,075)
(2,692,519)
149,112
749,999
(224,321)
(149,460)
(225,449)
(880,352)

2,203,225

$ (4,587,925

3,875,295

$§ 3875275
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Fuads
June 30, 2009

Total
Fiduciary
Funds
Assets
Cash and investments (note 2) § 843,168
Cash and investments with fiscal agent {note 2) 416,489
Accounts receivable, net 16,303
Total assets $ 1,275,960
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 10,440
Deposits payable 1,265,520
Total liabilities § 1,275960

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
5
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2009

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Description of the Reporting Entity

On August 135, 2007, the Victor Valley Water District and the Baldy Mesa Water
District were consolidated into a subsidiary district of the City of Victorville
(City), known as the Victorville Water District (District), per Resolution No. 2977
of the Executive Officer of the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)
of San Bernardino County, which adopted a change of organization without
election, All of the liabilities including debt obligations of the Victor Valley
Water District and the Baldy Mesa Water District were assumed by this
subsidiary district and the City upon consolidation. Upon consolidation of the two
districts the City consolidated the operations and activities of its Water
Department and Water Funds into the District fo serve all of the water customers
of the City under this District. The basic operations of the District are financed by
user charges plus capital contributions to finance growth of the water delivery
system. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors (City
Council}, each holding staggered four-year terms.

The criteria used in defermining the scope of the {inancial reporting entity is
based on the provisions of Governmental Accounting Statements No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations Are Component Units (an amendment of No. 14). The City of
Victorville is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a
separately elected governing board that is elected by the citizens in a general
popular election (City Council). The District is a subsidiary district of the City of
Victorville, which the City Council is the governing body thereof and is duly
responsible for conducting the business of the District as part of its governing
process over the City of Victorville. The City is financially accountable if it
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and: 1) It is able
to impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government.

Assessment District No. 2R was established to provide financing for construction
and improvement of the water system. In 1987, the Victorville County Water
District 1911 Act Improvement Bonds were issued. On June 27, 1989, the Baldy
Mesa Water District issued $8,292,572 in Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series
1989, Assessment District No, 2R. The District provides adminisirative duties as
placing assessments on the County tax rolls and submitting payments to the
trustee for the assessment bond helders. During fiscal year June 30, 2009, it was
determined by the City of Victorville that the Assessment District No. 2R be
considered a fiduciary fund of the District. Accordingly, the Assessment Disfrict
No. 2R fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held by the District, The fimd
is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurements of
results of operations.
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(b)

(©)

VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

of Significant Accounting Policies, {Continued

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are comprised of the Statement of Net Assets, the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, the Statement of
Cash Flows, Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and the notes to the basic financial
statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account
for operations that are financed and operated in a manmer similar to a private
business enterprise, where the intent of the District is that the costs of providing
water to its customers on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges (water salss and services), capital grants and similar
funding. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting petiod in which they are
earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place.

Operating revenues, such as water sales and service charges, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activities of the District. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Non-operating revenues, such as grant funding and investment income,
result from non-exchange transactions, in which, the District gives (rece:ves)
value without directly receiving (giving) value in exchange Operating expenses
for the District include the cost of purchased water, cost of sales and services,
administration expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating expenses.

The District’s basic financial statements are presented in conformance with the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
34, “Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis —
for State and Local Governments” (GASB No. 34). This statement established
revised financial, reporting requirements for state and local governments
throughout the United States for the purpose of enhancing the understandability
and usefulness of financial reports.

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronouncements provide for a revised view
of financial information and restructure the format of financial information
provided prior to its adoption. A statement of net asseis replaces the balance
sheet and reports asgsets, liabilitics, and the difference between them as net assets,
not equity.
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( (d)

VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

of Sipnificant Accounting Policies, (Continued

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation,

{Continued)

A statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets replaces both the
income statement and the statement of changes in retained earnings and
contributed capital. GASB No, 34 also requires that the statement of cash flows
be prepared using the direct method. Under the direct method, cash flows from
operating activities are presented by major categories.

Under GASB No, 34, enterprise funds, such as the District, have the option of
consistently following or not following pronouncerments issued by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB) subsequent to November 30, 1989, The
District has elected not to follow FASB standards issued after that date, unless
such standards are specifically adopted by GASB.

Relationship to the City of Victorville

The Victorville Water District (“District™) is an integral part of the reporting
entity of the City of Victorville (“City”) and is reflected as a blended component
unit within the City of Victorville, The District fund has been included within the
scope of the basic financial statements of the City because the City Council is the
governing board and has financial accountability over the operations of the
District. Only the District fund is included herein and these financial statements,
therefore, do not purport to represent the financial position or results of operations
of the City of Victorville, California —

(®)

®

Cash and Investments

Tnvestments are reported in the accompanying balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment
income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest eamnings,
changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale
of investments.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the staternent of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-
term, highly Hquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition that are both readily convertible to known amounts of
cash or so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in
value because of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents include the cash and
investments held by a fiscal agent.

Page 171 of 654




1

Summ.

(g

b

(i)

@

VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

of Sipnificant Accounting Policies, (Continued

Accounts Receivable, Net

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When
management deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the
allowance method for the reservation and write-off of those accounts.

Deferred Revenue

The deferred revenue associated with the District is for prepaid connection fees
which were received before year end that will not be earmed until the following
year.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an
estimated historical cost where no historical records exist, The District capitalizes
all assets with a historical cost of at least $5,000 and a useful life of at least three
years. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market valne at the date of
donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the assets or materially extend the life are not capitalized.

Depreciation is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10-50 years
Transnmssion and distribution

Systems 40 years
Source of supply — welis 10-40 years
Water treatment systems 5-10 years
Telemetering equipment 5 years
Furniture and equipment 3-7 years
Vehicles 8-15 years

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies consist primarily of water meters, pipe and pipefittings for
construction and repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution
system. Materials and supplies are valued at cost using a weighted average
method. Materials and supplies items are charged to expense at the time that
individual items are consumed.
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

(k)

ity

()

()

(0)

®)

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments io vendors reflects costs or deposits applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial
statements. :

Deferred Charges

The deferred charges are from bond issuance cosis that will be amortized using the
straight-line method over the remaining life of the respective debt service.

Compensated Absences

In accordance with (GASB No. 16, a liability is recorded for unused vacation and
similar compensatory leave balances since the employees’ entitlement to these
balances are aftributable to services already remdered and it is probable that
virtually all of these balances will be liquidated by either paid time off or
payments upon termination or retirement.

Customer Deposits

Based on a customer’s credit, the District may require & deposit deemed
reasonable by the District. These deposits are held to pay off close out bills or to
cover delinquent payments,

Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the
District through the collection of AB-1600 connection fees, by property owners,
granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital
expenditures or capacity commitment.

Estimaies

The presentation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

1
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Pinancial Statements

(Continued)

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, {Continued

(@)  Net Assets

Net assets are classified in the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This amount consists or capital assets net of accumulated deprectation and
reduced by outstanding debt that attnbuted to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of the assets,

Restricted Net Assets

This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Assets
This amount is all net assets that do not meet the definition of “invested i capital

assets” or “restricted net assets.”

{2)  Cash gnd Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2009 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of net assets:

Cash and investments $ 8,401,445
Cash and investments held by bond trustee 6,663,198
Fiduciary funds:
Cash and investments 843,168
Cash and investments held by bond trustee 416,489
Total cash and investments $16.324,304
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2009 consist of the following:
Deposits with financial institutions $ 5,244,617
Investments 7.0679,687
Total cash and investrnents $16,324,304
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(2)

VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Cash and Investments, (Continued)

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District’s investment policy, The table below identifies the investment types that are
authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies certain
provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk and concentration of

credit risk.
Maximmum
Authorized Maximum
Investoent Type Maturity
U.S. Treasury Obligations Nong
U.8. Agency Securities None
Banker’s Acceptances { year
Commercial Paper 180 days
Money Market Mutual Funds None
Repurchase Agreements None
Investment Contracts None
Certificate of Deposit None
Local Agency Investment Fund None

California Common Law Trust Shares None

Disclosures Relating fo Interest Rate Risk

Maximum
Percentage
Allowed

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Investment
In One Issuer

None
None
None
None
MNone
None
None
None
None
None

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways
that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination
of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so
that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as

necessary to provide the cash flow and hquidity needed for operations.

12
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

(2) Cash and Investtnents, (Continued)
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk, {Continued)

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including
investments held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of these investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturing {in Months)
12 Months 13t024 25t060 More Than

Investment Type Total Orless Monthe Months 60 Months
Held by bond trustee:

Money market funds $7.079.687 7.079.687 - - -

Total $7,079.687 1,079,687 __- . i

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the
minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for
each investment type.

Minimum Rating as of Year End

Legal Not
Investment Type Total Rafing AAA Rated
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds $7.079.687 A 7.079.687 -
Total $7.079,687 1079687 -

Concentration of Credit Risk

There are no investments in any one issuer (other than U.S Treasury securities, mutual
funds, and investment pools) that represents 5% or more of total investments for the
entire entity,

Custodial Credit Risk

The District does not have separate certificates of deposit or demand accounts held by
bond trustee that are subject to disclosable custodial credit risk (as defined by GASB
Statement No. 40). The District does not have direct investments in securities subject to
disclosable custodial credit risk (as defined by GASB Statement No. 40).

13

Page 176 of 654




VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

(3) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Non-depreciable assets
Land
Construction in progress
Teta] non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assefs:

Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equipment

Computer and conumunication

Vehicles

Infrastructure

Water rights

Intangibles - water related
Total depreciable assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements
Furnitare and equipment
Computer and commumnication
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Water rights
Intangibles - water related

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total depreciable assets, net

Capital assets, net:

Balance at Balance at
7/1/2008 Additions Delgtions 6/30/2009
8,399,928 6,872 - 8,406,800
14,089,256 14,462,179 (15,253,677 13,297,758
22,489,184 14,469,051 {15,253,677) 21,704,558
15,633,125 3,011,374 - 18,644,459
17,929,044 181,482 - 18,110,526
1,253,309 9,556 - 1,262,865
2,243,980 565,726 2,809,706
144,628,401 11,481,673 - 156,120,074
12,598,384 - - 12,598,384
1,353,309 - - 1,353,309
195,639,552 15,259,811 - 210,899,363
(3,330,976) {635,175) - (3,966,151)
(6,076,227} (695,351) - (6,771,578)
(969,082) {23,803) - (992,885)
(1,388,113) (227,944) - (1,616,057
{37,999,595) (4,546,100) - (42,545,695)
(4,153,173) (727,453) - (4,880,626)
(1,353,309) - - (1,353,309)
(55,270,475) (6,855,826) - (62,126,301)
140,369,077 8,403,983 - 148,773,062
162,858,261 22,873,036 (15,253,677} 170,477,620

14
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(4) Receivables, Payables, and Transfers to Other Governments

The composition of receivables, payables, and transfers to other governments as of
Tune 30, 2009 is as follows:

Advances to/from others govermments:

Receivable Government Payable Government Amount
Victorville Water District City of Victorville
Municipal Utility $21.929.420 (a)
Total $21.929,420
(a) The City of Victorville Municipal Utility entered into two agreements to borrow

money from the Victorville Water District to fund the cost of capital improvements,
general administrative and operating expenditures that were incurred by the City of
Victorville Municipal Utility in the prior years. The first agreement was entered into
on April 13, 2009 for $2,700,000, with a term of repayment of five years from the
date of the agreement, with the annualized Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF™)
rate as the interest rate. The outstanding balance of the first advance as of June 30,
2009 is $1,929,420. The second agreement was entered into on June 30, 2009 for
$20,000,000, with a term of repayment of five years from the date of the agreement,
with the annualized Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF™) rate as the interest rate.
The outstanding balance of the second advance as of June 30, 2009 is $20,000,000.
The sum of the two outstanding advances as of June 30, 2009 is $21,929,420.

(5)___ Deferred Charpes

Deferred charges as of June 30, 2009 consist of the following:

Balance at
Juty 1,2008 Balance at

asrestated (1) Additions Deletions June 30, 2009

2004 La Salle water rights note 7,578 - (2,218) 5,360

1998 Certificates of Participation 302,274 - {18,795) 283,479

2006 Certificates of Participation 209,630 - (1.487) 202,143

Deferred charges, net $ 710321 - (219.339) 490,982
(1)  During fiscal year June 30, 2009, the Assessment District 2R was reclassified to a

fiduciary fund of the District. Accordingly, the deferred charges of the
Assessment District 2R 2006 Refunding Improvement bonds were removed from
the District. See reclassification of net assets at note 10 for description of
reclassification,

15
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2009 is noted
below:

Balance at
July 1, 2608 Balance at  Due Within
as restated (1) Additions Retirements June 30,2009 Ome Year
Compensated Absences $176,736 255,823 (176,736) 255,833 52,000
OPEB Obligation - 339,000  (83,559) 255,441 -
Long-term debt;
2004 La Salle water riglits note 1,063,921 - (289,259) 773,962 300,964
1998 Certificate of participation 2,160,000 - (B5,000) 2,075,000 90,000
2006 Certificate of participation 12,840,000 - (240,000} 12,600,000 245000
Totals long-term debt 19,498,921 - (614,959 15,448,962 _ 635964
Totals §19,675,657 _ 594,833 (875254 15960236 _ 687,964

(1)  During fiscal year June 30, 2009, the Assessment District 2R was reclassified to a
fiduciary flind of the District. Accordingly, the long-term debt of the Assessment
Distriet 2R 2006 Refunding Improvement bonds was removed from the District.
See reclassification of net assets at note 10 for description of reclassification.

Installment Sale Agreement:
2004 La Salle Water Rights Note Payable

In May 2004, the City of Victorville’s Baldy Mesa Water District entered into a note
payable for $2,243,000. The proceeds were used for the purpose of financing the
purchase of water rights.

The note payable has an interest rate of 3.76%. The annual debt service is a special
limited obligation of the Baldy Mesa Water District payable from and secured by a
pledge of and lien on the net revenyes of the Water District. Principal and interest
payments are due each November 26" and May 26™ The amount of the note payable
outstanding at June 30, 2009 is §773,962.
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(6) Fong-Term Liabilities, (Continued)
Certificates of Participation:
1998 Certificates of Participation

In 1998, the City of Victorville’s Baldy Mesa Water District issued 1998 Certificates of
Participation in the amount $2,850,000. The proceeds were used to finance public
improvements within the Baldy Mesa Water District service area.

The Certificates of Participation had a stated interest rates ranging from 4.10% to 5.00%.
The annual debt service is a special limited obligation of the District payable from and
secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the District. Principal and interest
payments are due each August 1* and interest only payments are due each Febrnary 1%,
The amount of Certificates of Participation outstanding at June 30, 2009 is $2,075,000.

2006 Certificates of Participation

On March 1, 2006, the City of Victorville’s Baldy Mesa Water District issued 2006
Certificates of Participation. The proceeds were used to finance public improvements
within the Baldy Mesa Water District service area.

The Certificates of Participation had a stated interest rates ranging from 3.20% to 5.00%.
The annual debt service is a special limited obligation of the District payable from and
secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the District. Principal and interest
payments are due each August 1% and interest only payments are due each February 1*.
The amount of Certificates of Participation outstanding at Yune 30, 2009 is $12,600,000.

17
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Long-Term Liabilities, {Continued)

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize outstanding debt of the District as of June 30, 2009,

are as follows for each fiscal year ending June 30:

Installment Installment
Year Sale Sale Certificates
Ending Agreement Agreement of Participation
June 30 Principal Interest Principal
2010 % 300,964 26,298 335,000
2011 312,286 14,876 350,000
2012 160,612 ] 3,019 360,000
2013 - “ 370,000
2014 - - 385,000
2015 - - 410,000
2016 - - 430,000
2017 - - 440,000
2018 - - 465,000
2619 - - 490,000
2020 - - 505,000
2021 - - 530,000
2022 - - 550,000
2023 - - 575,000
2024 - - 600,000
2025 - - 625,000
2026 - - 465,000
2027 - - 485,000
2028 - - 505,000
2029 - - 530,000
2030 - - 555,000
2031 - . 580,000
2032 . - 605,000
2033 - - 640,000
2034 - - 670,000
2035 - - 705,000
2036 - - 740,000
2037 - - 775,000
Total £ 773,962 —44.193 14,675,000
18

Certificates
of Participation
Interest

669,268
656,313
642,765
628,615
613,905
595,805
576,655
556,705
536,055
516,240
495,240
473,390
450,375
426,180
399,845
372,483
348,625
328,398
307,300
284,575
260,725
235,750
206,750
176,500
144,500
111,000

75,750
38,750

1112846
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

{7 Debt without Govemment Commitment
Refunding Improvement Bonds:

Refunding Improvement Act Bonds. Series 2006, Assessment District 2R

On March 2, 2006, the Baldy Mesa Water District issued $4,070,000 principle amount in
Refunding improvement Bonds Series 2006. The proceeds were used to refinance and
refund the Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 1989, Assessment District 2R, to fund
areserve fund for the Bonds and pay cost related to the issuance of the Bonds.

A total of $4,998,487 was deposited with an escrow agent to pay down the outstanding
principal, interest on the 1989 Series Refunding Improvement Bonds. The escrow agent
purchased a $4,998,487 U.S. Government security (SLGS) and deposited it into an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the Refunding
Improvement Bonds Series 1989,

As a result, the Refunding improvement Bonds, Series 1989, Assessment District 2R, are
considered defeased and the liability for those obligations has been removed from the
financial statements. The Baldy Mesa Water District completed the advance refunding to
reduce the total debt service payments over the next eight fiscal years by $283,563 and to
obtain an economic gain of approximately $197,553.

A special assessment has been levied on the property tax bill of those residents who
reside within the boundaries of Assessment District 2R to repay the debt service of this
obligation. Principal and interest payments are due cach September 2°% and interest only
payments are due each March 2™, The amount of refunding bonds outstanding on June
30, 2009 is $2,995,000.

(8) Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

The balance of net assets that are invested in capita! assets, net of related debt at June 30,
2009, consists of the following:

Non-depreciable capital assets _ % 21,704,558
Depreciable capital assets, net 148,773,062
Cash with fiscal agents 6,542,715
Certificates of participation, due within one year (335,000)
Certificates of participation, due more than one year (14.340.000)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 62,34
19
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

(9) Defined Benefit Plan

Employees of the District are members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System
(PERS), the cost of which is paid by the District. At June 30, 2009, the District’s net
other post employment benefits oblipation of $255,441 has been included in the
accompanying statement of net assets as a long term lability. For further details
regarding actuarial assumptions etc., refer to the City of Victorville’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.

(10Y __ Restatement of Net Assets

Net assets at June 30, 2008 have been restated to reflect the following corrections to the
net assets as of June 30, 2009;

; Net assets at June 30, 2008 as previously reported $ 193,973,171
( Reclassify Assessment District 2R from the District to a
fiduciary fund of the District: (1,036,623) (1)
Nef assets at June 30, 2008, as restated 192 936,54

(1) During fiscal year June 30, 2009, the Assessment District 2R was reclassified to a
fiduciary fund of the District. Accordingly, the net assets of the Assessment District
2R were removed from the District and reclassified to a fiduciary fund of the District.

( 20
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Board of Directors

Victorville Water District
Victorville, California

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
-AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited the component unit financial statements of the Victorville Water District
(“District™} as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 29, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standardys, issued by the Compftroller General of the United
States of America.

Internal Controf Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our anditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting,

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
interhal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies and other deficiencies that
we consider to be material weaknesses.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District’s
financial statements that is more then inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
District’s internal control. We consider findings 2009-1 through 2009-4 described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Recommendations to be a significant deficiencies in
internal control,

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that

results in mote than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the District’s internal control.

21
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Board of Directors
Victorviile Water District
Page Two

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily
disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weakness, However,
of the significant deficiencies described above, we consider items 2009-1, 2009-2 and 2009-4
that have been described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Recommendations to be
material weaknesses,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial siatement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matfers that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of management of the Victorville Water
District and Board of Directors, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

/47%/414%4% /e lana A,

Irvine, California
January 29, 2010
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VICTORVILLE WATER BDISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Recommendations

Year ended June 30, 2009

(2009-1) Need for Improved Communication over Changes in Capital Assets

During the current year’s observation of capital assets it was nofed that there was a
significant lack of communication of the disposition of capital assets between City
departments. This is a city-wide issue but it was primarily identified at the Southern
California Logistics Airport Authority (SCLAA), SCLAA demolished numerous
amounts of capital assets between the periods of October 2005 through April 2008
that were not communicated in a timely fashion to the City of Victorville’s finance
department. The lack of communication resulted in the writing off of 72% of the
SCLAA depreciable assets in the prior year, In the current year’s physical inspection
of the SCLAA capital assets it was identified that the capital assets were improperly
written off resulting in a correction to beginning capital assets to reinstate the
buildings that were previously written off that were not demolished or impaired. The
result of the lack of communication caused a material weakness since the demolished
capital assets were not reported in the correct prior year and an incorrect decision was
made to write off capital assets in 2007 that should not have been written off had
there been proper communications.

The District received this finding and recommendation on August 25, 2009 in the
year ended June 30, 2008 Financial Statements, The finding remains the same during
year end June 30, 2009 since the City did not have the appropriate time to implement
new procedures. The City plans to correct the finding at the beginning of the 2010
fiscal year,

Recommendation
The City of Victorville should establish formal monitoring policies and procedures
for keeping the finance department personnel informed, in a timely manper, of not

only capital asset acquisitions but capital assets that have been disposed of or
impaired.

(2009-2) _Adjustments Detected by the Audit Process

Paragraph 19 of the Statement on Auditing Standards No. 112 requires that the
auditor include in the report of significant control deficiencies any material
adjustments detected by the audit process. For the year ended June 30, 2009,
material adjustments detected by the audit process were as follows:

¢ To record additional revenue in the amount of $707,834 for water sales
occurred in June 2009 but not bilied to customers until July 2009,

s The Water Assessment District had a long term debt recorded by the City in
the water enterprise fund. Additionally the City recognized a long term
receivable for amount to be collected from property owners to pay off this
debt, This debt is not an obligation of the City and therefore liability and the
corresponding receivable has been removed from water enterprise fund.
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Recomiendations

{Continued)

(2009-2)  Adjustments Detected by the Audit Process, (Continued)

Recommendation

An important element of control over financial reporting is for management to
identify adjustments necessary for financial statements to be fairly stated. Whenever
possible, adjustments should be reflected in the accounting records prior to the start of
the audit. When this is not possible, management should identify and communicate to
the auditors the potential areas of adjustment that may need 1o be addressed during
the audit process. This is an important element of internal conirol to reduce the risk of
material misstatement,

(2009-3) _Need for Enhanced Finance Department Involvement in Financial Statements
Preparation

During the annual audit of the City of Victorville's financial statement for fiscal year
ending June 30, 2009, the City's Independent Auditor, Mayer Hoffiman McCann P.C
{MHM) was heavily involved in the preparation of financial statements with input
from the City’s finance department, MHM’s involvement wes needed by the City due
to time constraint to issue the financial statements. We noted certain opportunities for
increased involvement from the Finance Department, for future audits, in the
following areas:

The preparation of revenue classification schedule for the government wide
statement of activities presentation.

The preparation of reconciliation worksheet between fund financial statements
to government wide statements,

The coding of the City’s trial balance account for fund financial statements
grouping.

Documentation of analysis that was done to demonstrate City's compliance
with water bond rate covenants,

The preparation of certain notes to the financial statements.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City consider expanding the role of the Finance Department
in order to allow them the opportunity to increase their involvement in the preparation
of the City’s Financial Statements,
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VICTORVILLE WATER DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Recommendations

(Continued)

(2009-4) Need for Formal Documentation and Approval of Long-term Interfund Borrowing

As cash requirements (overdrafis) of the City are met through interfund borrowing
from unrestricted funds, those interfund borrowings (if not expected to be paid within
one year) should be formally approved by management and City Council as long-tertn
interfund advances, The General Fund, Solid Waste Management, Sanitary District,
Street Lighting District and the Storm Drain Utility have advanced significant
amounts of cash to the Other Federal Grants Fund, Golf Course Fund, Municipal
Utility Fund, as well as other funds of the City.

The Capital Impact Facilities Fund consisted of several Development Impact Fees
(DIF) sub-funds that are presented as a capital project fund in City’s financial
statement. At June 30, 2009, the Public Building DIF fund hes borrowed a substantisl
amount from Road Service DIF fund and other DIF funds. We believe that there
should be a formal approval of advances between DIF funds for repayment of those
amounts that were collected for specific purposes,

Recommendations

We recommend the following:

* Formally approve and document interfund long-term advances between the
borrowing fund’s (Other Federal Grants Fund, Golf Course Fund, Municipal
Utility, others) and funds from which the advance was made.

¢ Formally approve and document long term advances between the Public
Building DIF fund and other DIF funds, .

e Implement and document monitoring controls to insure that interfund
borrowing does not affect restricted funds.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Victorville Water District
Victorville, California

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of the Victorville Water District (District), a subsidiary
district of the City of Victorville (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are
the responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic
financial statements based on our audit. The comparative financial information as of June 30, 2007 was
comprised of consolidated audited information that was audited by other auditors and our firm whose reports
expressed unqualified opinions and a disclaimer of an opinion on those basic financial statements as further
discussed in Note 2 to the basic financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic fingncial statements are free of material misstatement. An
andit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our andit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Victorville Water District as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in
net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. :

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 11, 2009, on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.

- That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our andit.

Management's discussion and analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and preqentatlon of the required supplementaly information. However, we did not audit this
mformation and express no opinton on it.

QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplemental information section is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

April 11,2009 ‘it é\,
P. . (/Q/:ﬂ‘“ &r‘&_\_

Cypress, California

Member of: American Institute of Certified Public Accountanis » California Society of Certified Public Accouniants
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Victorville Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance
of the Victorville Water District (District), a subsidiary district of the City of Victorville (City), provides
an introduction to the financial statements of the Districi for the year ended June 30, 2008. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements and
related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

o The District’s net assets increased 9.43% or $16,713,350 from $177,259,821 to $193,973,171 in
2008.

» The District’s operating revenues decreased 11.8% or $2,882,337 in 2008 primarily due to a
decrease in water sales to District customers and construction contractors.

» The District’s operating expenses before depreciation increased 6.8% or $1,349,561 in 2008
primarily due to a $704,807 increase in customer service expenses and a $656,162 increase in
general and administrative expenses.

Requlred Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and Statement of Cash Flows provide information about
the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by private
sector compameq

The Statement of Net Assets mcludes ‘all of the District’s investments in resources {assets) and the
obligations to creditors (habilities). It also ptowdes the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating
the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All
of the current year’s revenue and expenses aré accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets. This statemént measures the success of the District’s operations over the past
year and can be used to determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its
rates and other charges. This statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness.
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information about
the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statement of Cash Flows
repoits cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-
capital financing, and capital and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as
where did"cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash ba]ance during the
reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets report information about the District in a way that helps
answer this question. These statements inciude all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies, All of the current
year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

Q)
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These two statements report the Dlstrzct 'S ‘net adsets and chancres 111 t.hem You can think of the District’s
net assets — the difference between assets and ]1ab1]1tles — as one way to measure the D1stnct s financial
health, or financial position. Qver ume increases or decregses in the Dlstnct s net assets are one
indicator of whether its finaricial health is improving or deferiorating. However, one will need to consider
other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth; zoning and new
or changed government legislation, such as changes in Federal and State water quality standards.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 10
through 23,

Statement of Net Assets
Condensed Statements of Net Assets
2008 2007 Change
Assets: ' o
Current assets $ 65,765,618 60,898,427 4,867,191
Non-current assets 12,729,647 19,682,748 - (6,953,101
Capital assets, net 154,413,050 140,240,330 14,172,720
Total assets 232,908,315 220,821,505 12,086,810
Liabilities: '
Current liabilities 20,358,630 14,004,419 6,354,211 ' “i’r
Non-current liabilities 18,576,514 29,557,265 (10,980,751) s
Total liabilities : 38,935,144 43,561,684 (4,626,540)
Net assets: .
Net investment in capital assels 139,413,030 124,930,330 14,482,720
Restricted for capital asset construction 21,293,590 27,780,171 {6,486.581)
Restricted for debt service 1,036,623 1,176,079 (139,456)
Unrestricted 32,229,908 23,373,241 8,856,667
Total net assets 193,873,171 177,259,821 16,713,350
Total liabilities and net assets § 232,908,315 220,821,505 12,086,810

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $193,973,171 and $177,259,821 as of June 30,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

A portion of the District’s net assets (72% and 70% as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively) reflects
the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services 1o
customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these assets are no¢ available for future
spending.

The District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net assets of $32,229,908 and §23,373,241, as of
June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, which may be utilized in future years,
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Victorville Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2008 2007 Change
Revenues: .
Operating revenues $ 21,538,560 24,420,897 (2,882,337
Non-operating revenues 4,970,575 4,667,753 2,822
Total revenues 26,509,135 29,388,650 (2,879.515)
Expenses: '
Operating expenses 21,086,805 19,737,244 - - 1,349,561
Depreciation expense 7,019,824 4,978,910 2,040,914
Non-operating expenses 2,608,548 1,318,664 1,289,884
Total expenses ) 30,715,177 26,034,818 4,680,359
Net income before post employment adj. 4,206,042 3,353,832 (7,559,874)
Other item: - . ' '
Post employment benefits adjustment 4,908,000 (9,908,000) 19,816,000
Net income before capital cont. 5,701,958 (6,554,168) 012,256,126
Capital contributions ) _ 11,011,392 23,322,468 - (14,311,076)
.Change in.net assets., 16,713,350 18,768,300 (2,054,950)
Net assets, beginning of year 177,259,821 ]58 491,521 18,768,300
Net assets, end of year § 193973171 77350831 ¢ 16713350

The statement of revenues, expenses and changc—:s of net assets shows how the District’s net assets
changed during the fiscal years. In the case of the District, net asséts mcueased by $16,713, 3.}0 and
$18, 768,300 for the year's ended Tune 30; 2008 and 2007, respectlve]y

A closer examination of the sources of changes in net assets reveals that:

In 2008, the Dlstnct s total revenues decreased by $2.879, 515, pr1ma1 ﬂy diuefo a dec1ease in water sales
to District customiers and construction contractors. In addition, fotal expenses mcreased $4, 680,350
primarily due to a $704,807 increase in customer service expenses, a $656,162 incredse in general and
administrative expenses, a $2,040,914 increase in dépreciation expense and a $1,630,364. write-off of
disposed capital assets and surplus material as a result of the consolidation of the entities. Also, in 2007,
the Victor Valley Water District pre-adepted GASB No. 45 and recorded its entire unfunded actuarial
accrued liability of $9,908,000 prior to the consolidation into the Victorville Water District. In 2008, the
District reversed this estimated accrued liability:into a non-operating revenue item and will reevaluate and

adopt its GASB No. 45 accrual for other postemployment benefits in fiscal year 2009. (See Note 14 for
further details)

Capital Asset Administration

At the end .of fiscal year 2008 and 2007, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to
$154,413,050 and $140,240,330, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, transmission and- distribution” systems, wells, tanks, reservoirs, pumps,
buildings and structures, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-process. {See Note 7 for further details)
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Changes in capital assel amounts for 2008 were as follows: .
Balance o Transfers/ Balance
2007 Additions Deletions 2008
Capital assets: B '
Non-depreciable assets $ 22,272,747 15,467.022 (15,250.585) 22,480,184
Depreciable assals - 165.003.067 21,222,008 (3,267.897) 182,957.268
Accurnulated depréciation  (47.035484) (6.292.071) 2294053 (51,033,402)
Total capital assets, net $§ 140240330 30.397.049 (16.224,329) 154,413,050

Debt Administration

Loug-tenn debt, net decreased by $1,014,356 5n 2008 due to regular principal payments on the District’s
ontstanding debts. (See Note 10 for further details)

Changeé in'lorig-term debt amounts for 2008 were as follows:

Balance Additions/ Principal Balance
2007 Deletions Payments 2008
Leng-term debt:
Bonds payable $ 3,860,000 - (425,000} 3,435,000
Ndéte payable 1,343,277 - (279,356) 1,063,921
Certificates-of-participation payable 15,310,000 - (310,000) 15,000,000
Total long-term debt $ 20,513,277 - {1.014,356) 19,498.921
Condjtions Affecting the Dlstrlct s Current and Future Financial Condition \\__i:_i;__fj

Local Economy

The local economy, like those of the State of California and many counties and cities in the state are faced
with significant fiscal challenges resulting from the economic decline that began in early 2007 and
continues to the present. The City and District, specifically the City, is faced with challenges in its
revenue streams, its ability to access the credit markets, its efforts to attract and retain jobs and to address
fundamental structural changes that reflect current conditions. At the same time, the City and District are
focusing on taking significant steps to alleviate the impacts to its citizens and customers resulting from
the current recession.

Looking ahead to fiscal year 2009 and beyond, the District is expecting an economic environment that is
difficult, with increases in unemployment, further contraction in consumer spending, continuing
foreclosure activity and continuing lack of construction related jobs coupled with a continued water
shortage due to a prolonged drought in the State of California. The District is hopeful that the current
recession will conclude by the end of calendar year 2009 and that the process of recovery will begin. With
that recovery will come a restoration of revenue, population growth and construction activity in the area.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.
Shouid the reader have guestions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request
additional financial information, please contact the District’s Director, Reggie Lamson at 17185 Yuma
Street, Victorville, CA 92395 or (760) 955-2557.
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Viciorville Water District
Statement of Net Assets
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With Comparative Information as of june 30, 2007
Assets 2008 2047
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $ 36,163,466 25.457.901
Accrued interest receivable 244,340 433374
Restricted — cash and cash equivalents (note 3) 22,741,887 28,682,789
Restricted — accrued interest receivable 106,343 185,473
Accounts receivable — water sales and services. net {note 43 1,644,186 1.700.875
Accounts receivable — property taxes 20,025 28,479
Accounts receivable — stale granis 381.254 314,161
Accounts recelvable — other 3,092,604 371,002
Materials and supplies inventory 361,731 604,974
Prepaid expenses and deposits . 2.999.082° 3.118.499
Total ourrent asséts ’ 65.765.618 __60.898427
Non-current assets:

Investments {nole 3) 421,272 6,043,311
Assessments receivable (note 10) 3,152,843 3.697.206
Deferred charges, net (note 5) 714,321 769.767
Water rights, net (note 6) 8,445,211 9.172.664
Capital assets, not being depreciated (note 7) 22,485,184 22272747
Capital assets being depreciated, net {note 7} 131.923.866 117.967,583
Total non-current assets 167.142,697 159,923,078

Total assets $ 232,908,315 220.821,505

Liabilities and Net Assels

Current liabilities: .
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . § 2,359,565 6,858,713 A

Accroed wages and related payables 149,460 172.932 N
Due Lo the City of Viciorville (note 8) 12,448.258 -
Customer advances, deposits and dsflerred revenue 3,972.809 3,558,045
Accrued interest payable 329.395 350,258
Long-term liabilities — due within one year:
Compensated absences (note 9) 44.184 50,115
Bonds payable (note 10} 440,000 425,000
Note payable (note 10) 289,959 279,356
Certificates-of-participation payable {note 10) 325.000 310.000
Total current liabilities 20.358,630 14,004,419

MNon-current Habilities:
Long-term lahilities — due in more than cne year:

Compensated absences (note 9) 132,552 150,344
Post employment benefits payable (note 14) - 6,908,000
Bonds payable (nete 10} 2.9635,000 3,435,000
Note payeble (note 10) 773,962 1,063,521
Certificates-of-participation payable (note 10} 14.675.000 15,000,000
Total non-current liabilities 18,576,514 29,557,265
Total liabilities 38,935,144 43,561,684
Nel assets:

Net investment in capital assets (note 11) 139,413,050 124,930,330
Restricted for capital asse! construction 21,283,590 27,780,171
Restricted for debt service 1,036,623 1,176,079
Unrestricted (note 12) . 32,229,908 23,373.241
Total net assets 163,973,171 177.259,821

Total liabilities and net assets § 232008315 220,821,505

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Victorville Water District
Statement of Revenunes, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
With Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2007

—

2008 2007
Operating revenues:
‘Water consumption sales $ 13,623,753 15,185,069
Monthly meter service charge 6,477,785 6,656,965
Other charges and services 1,437,022 2,578,863
Total operating revenues 21,538,560 24,420,897
Operating expenses:
Source of supply:
Imported water supply purchases 4,379,917 4,727,960
Pumping 3,048,207 3,172,092
- Water production 985,515 839,784
Water treatment, transmission and distribution 4,128,550 . 4,058,978
Engineering services 1,143,277 952,745
Water conservation - 347,895 293210
Customer service 2,494,832 1,790,025
General and administrative 4,558,612 3,902,450
Total operating expenses 21,086,805 19,737,244
Operating income before depreciation and amortization 451,755 4,683,653
Depreciation and amortization (7,019,824) (4,978,910)
Operating loss {6,568,069) (295,257)
Non-operating revenue(expense):
Q Property taxes 1,294,485 789,345
e Investment earnings 2,837,656 3,143,346
Arsenic surcharge 801,399 G79,242
Interest expense — long-term debt (865,079) (1,133,871}
Amortization of deferred charges (59,446) (59,446)
Post employment benefits adjustment (note 14) 9,908,000 (9,508,000)
Loss on sale/disposition of capital assets, net . (1,110,570) (8,162)
LLoss on sale/disposition of surplus material, net _ (519,794) -
- Other n.on—operating revenues 37,035 55,820
Other non-operating expenses {53,659) {117,185)
Tota‘lﬂﬁon-operating revenues, net . 12,270,027 {6,258,911)
Net income(loss) hefore capital contributions 5,701,958 - {6,554,168)
Capital contributions:
Connection fees 3,711,863 15,371,660
Alternate water source fees 1,656,256 2,194,454
Developers and others 5,335,180 7,657,704
State grants 308,093 98,650
Capital contributions 11,011,392 25,322,468
Change in net assets 16,713,350 18,768,300
Net assets, beginning of year 177,259,821 158,491,521
Net assets, end of year $ 193,973,171 177,259,821
G See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
{‘i«:;.- -




Victorville Water District
- Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows from operating activilies:
Cash receipts from customers for waler sales and services
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materjals and services
Cash paid to employees for salaries and benefits

Net cash used in opérating activities

Cash flows from nen-capital financing activities:
Due to the City of Victorville
Proceeds from property taxes and assessments
Other non-operating revenues/(expenses), net

Net cash provided by non-capiial financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related {inancing activities:
Acquisilion and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from connection fees
Proceeds from allernate water source fees
Proceeds from state grants
Proceeds from the arsenic surcharge
Priticipal paid on leng-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments, net
Interest and investment earnings

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to stalement of financial position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted — cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staternents

Ce == === === === Foi‘the Year Ended Juie 30, 2008 — - — -

$ 19289311
(i 7{',606_,29])
(7.665,097)

12,448,258
1,837,402
(16,624)

14,269,036

(16,760,275)
3,711,863
1,656,256

241,000

801,399
(1,014,356)
(885,942)

(12.250,055)

5,621,839
3,105,920

8,727,759
4,764,663
54,140,650

§ 38903359

2008
$ 36,163,466
22,741,887
§ 58905353

A
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Victorville Water District
Statement of Cash Flow, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Reconciliation of operating loss tc net cash nsed in operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Deprecation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase}Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net
Accounts receivable — other
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits
Increase(Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Customer advances, deposits and deferred revenue
Compensated ahsences

Totat adjustments

Net cash used in operating activities

‘See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

2008

(6,568,069}

7,019,824

56,689
(720,702)
243,243
118,517

(4,499,148)
(23,472)
(1,585,236)

(23,723)
585,992
~ (5,982,077)




Viciorville Water District
Notes to the Basic Fmanc:lal Statements, contmued

—— - - Forthe-Year-

(1) -Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

On August 15, 2007, the Victor Valley Water District and the Baldy Mesa Water District were
consolidated into a subsidiary district of the City of Victorville (City), known as the Victorville Water
District (District), per Resolution No. 2977 of the Executive Officer of the Local Agency Formation
Commission (ILAFCQO) of San Bernardino County, which adopted a chémge' of organization without
election. All of the liabilities including debt obligations of the Victor Valley Water District and the Baidy
Mesa Water District were assumed by this subsidiary district and the Clty upon consohdatlon Upon
consolidation of the two districts the City consolidated the operations and activities of its Water
Department and Water Funds into the District to serve all of the water customers of the City under this
District. The basic operations of the District are financed by user charges plus capital contributions to
finance growth of the water delivery system. The District is governed by a five-member Board of
Directors (City Council), each holding staggered four-year terms, (See Note 2 for further consolidation
information),

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No, 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units (an amendment of No. 14). The City of Victorville
is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is
elected by the citizens in a general popuier election (City Council). The District is a subsidiary district of
the City of Victorville, which the City Council is the governing body therecof and is duly responsible for
conducting the business of the District as part of its governing process over the City of Victorville. The
City is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and:
1) It is able to impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

Assessment District No. 2R was established to provide financing for construction and improvement of the
water system. In 1987, the Victorville County Water District 1911 Act Improvement Bonds were issued.
On June 27, 1989, the Baldy Mesa Water District issued $8,292,572 in Refunding Improvement Bonds,
Series 1989, Assessment District No, 2R, The District provides administrative duties such as placing
assessments on the County tax rolls and submitting payments to the trustee for the assessment bond
holders. Accordingly, the accounts and transactions of Assessment District No, 2R have been combined
with that of the District’s financial statements.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the costs of providing water to its customers on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales and services), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues
and expenses are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless
of when the related cash flows take place. :

Operating revenues, such as water sales and service charges, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activities of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as grant funding and investment
income, result from non-exchange fransactions, in which, the District gives (receives) value without
directly receiving (giving) value in exchange.

10




Victorville Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
C. Financial Reporting

The District’s basic financial statements are presented in conformance with the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements —
and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (GASB No. 34). This
statement established revised financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout
the United States for the purpose of énhancing the understandability and usefulness of financial reports.

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronocuncements provide for a revised view of financial information
and restructure the format of financial information provided prior to its adoption. A statement of net
assets replaces the balance sheet and reports assets, liabilities, and the difference between them as net
assets, not equity. A statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets replaces both the income
statement and the statement of changes in retained earnings and contributed capital. GASB No. 34 also
requires that the statement of cash flows be prepared using the direct method. Under the direct method,
cash flows from operating activities are presented by major categories.

Under GASB No. 34, enterprise funds, such as the District, have the option of consistently following or
not following pronouncements issued by the Iinancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) subsequent
to November 30, 1989. The District has elected not to follow FASB standards issued after that date,
unless such standards are specifically adopted by GASB.

D. Asseis, Liabilities and Net Asseis
I. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

2, Investments and Investiment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy directing management to deposit funds in financial
instifutions.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for
that fiscal year. Investrmuent income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.

3. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and
write-off of those accounts.

11




Victorville Jater District
Notes to the Basxc Fmanmal Statem nts continued
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A
(1) Reporting Entity and Sumimiary of Significant Accountmg Policies, continued T
D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued

4, Property Taxes and Assessments
The County of San Bernardino Assessor’s Ofﬁce assesses all real and personal property w1thm the
County each year. The County of San Bernardino Tax Collector’s Office bills and collects the
District’s share of property taxes and assessments, The County of San Bernardino Treasurer’s Office
remits current and deiinquent property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax
in California is fevied in accordance with Art]c]e 13A of the State Constitution af one percent (1%) of
countywide assessed valuations.
Property taxes lecewable al year- eud are related to property taxes collected by the County of San
Bernardino, which have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of June 30, The property
tax calendar is as follows:

Lien date March 1

Levy date July 1

Dwe dates November 1 and March 1

Collection dates December 10 and April 10
5. Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies consist primarily of water.meters, pipe and pipefittings for construction and
repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Materials and supplies are valued
at cost using a weighted average method. Materials and supphes items are charged to expense at the Y
time that individual items are consumed. _ \ﬁ“;‘

6. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflects costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements,

7. Restricted Assets

Certain assets of the District are restricted in use by ordinance or debt covepant and, accordingly are
shown as restricted assets on the accompanying statement of net assets. Special assessments, and
related receivables, are set aside from other assets since they are collected solely for the repayment of
the District’s Special Assessment bonds, The District uses restricted resources, prior to using
unrestricted resources; to pay expenditures meeting the criteria imposed on the use of restricted
resources by a third party,

8. Deferred Charges

The deferred charges are from bond issvance costs that will be amortized using the straight-line
method over the remaining life of the respective debt service,

12
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Victorville Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued
9. Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost, District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or
losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimnated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

» Buildings and structures — 25 to 50 years

» Transmission and distribution systems — 40 years
e Source of supply — wells — 10 to 40 years

e  Water treatment systems ~ 5 to 10 years

‘s Telemetering equipment — 5 years

» Furniture, equipment and tools — 5 to 15 years

¢ Vehicles— 5 to 10 years

10." Compensated Absences

In accordance with GASB No. 16, a liability is recorded for unused vacation and similar
compensatory Teave balances since the employees’ entiflement to these balances are atiributable to
services already rendered and it is. probabie that Virtually all of these balances wﬂl be liquidated. by
either pald time off or payments upon termination or retirement.

11. Customer Deposits.

Based on a customer’s credit, the District may require a deposit deemed reasonable by the District.
These aeposus are held to pay off close out bills or to cover delinquent payments.

12. Net Assets
The financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net assets are categorized as follows:

¢ Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component of net assets consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstandmg against the acquisition,
constructlon or improvement of those assets.

o Restricted Net Assets — This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net
‘assets use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or consiraints imposed by law through consiitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. ‘

»  Unrestricted Net Assets — This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets.

13. Water Sales

Most water sales are billed on a monthly cyclical basis. Estimated unbilled water revenue through
June 30 has been accrued at year-end.

14. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District through the
collection of AB-1600 connection fees, by property owners, granting agencies or real estate
developers desiring services that require capital expenditures or capacity commitment.

13
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(2) Consolidation of Nét’AsE’étS
The consolidated financial information as of June 20, 2007 was coaﬁﬁosed of atdited information that was
audited as follows:

1} Baldy Mesa Water District financial information was audited by Charles Z. Fedak & Co., CPAs
an Accountancy Corporation who issued an unquatified opinion on those financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2007 on December 18, 2007.

2) -Victor Valley Water Disfrict financial information was audited by Charles 7.. Fedak & Co., CPAs
ai Accountancy Corporation who issned an nnqualified opinion on those financial statc—:mems for
the year ended June 30, 2007 on December 15, 2007.

3) City of Victorville — Water Department Fund was audited as a Non-Major Plopnetary Fund of the
City of Victorville financial statements by Caporicci & Larson, CPAs who issued a disclaimer of
an opinion on those financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2007 on February 23, 2009.

The consolidated beginning net assets of the District totaled $177,259,821 as of July 1, 2007 as equated in
the table belaw. The detail comparison of financial information as of June 30, 2007 for the Statement of
Net Assets on page 6 includes certain reclassifications to conform to the current year presentation for
comparative purposes. The detail comparison financial information for the year ended June 30, 2007 for
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets on page 7 includes certain inter-entity
eliminating entries for water sales and water costs to the Victorville Water Department from the Victor
Valley Water District and certain other reclassifications to conform to the current year presentation for
comparative purposes. Comparative cash flow information was not available and therefore was not
presented on pages & and 9. The financial statements of the three entities were consolidated as follows.

Baldy Mesa Yictor Valley Victorville
Water Water Water
Financial Statement Acounts District District Department Total
Total assets 3 61,037,057 153,988,559 5,795,889 220,821,505
Total liabilities 25,105,079 18,292,029 164,576 43,501,684
Total net assets 35,031,978 135,096,530 5,631,313 177,259,821

Total liabilities and net assels $ 61,037,057 153,988,559 5,795,889 220,821,505

(3) Cash and Investments

Cash and invesiments as of June 30, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2008
Cash and cash equivalents 5 36,163,466
Restricted — cash and cash equivalents 22,741,887
Investments 421,272
Total cash and investments $ 59,326,625

Cash and investments as of June 30, consist of the following:

2008
Deposits with financial institutions $ 7,296,118
Investments 52,030,507

Total cash and investments $ 59,326,625

14
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Victorville Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(3) Cash and Investments, continued

Cash and investment balances represent the District’s share of the cash and investrnents held in the name
and the accounts of the District’s consolidated entities of the Baldy Mesa Water District and the Victor
Valley Water District. These cash and investment accounts have remained separate from the City’s cash
and investment pool. Interest and investment earnings on these accounts are allocated to the District and
not the City’s cash and investment pool.

The District utilizes the City's cash and investment pooled funds to operate as a daily operating fund of
the District to record and deposit receipts and pay payables as they become due through the City’s
financial accounting system: As of June 30, 2008, the District was liable to the City for $12,448,258 for
net amounts paid by the City from the City’s cash and investment pooled funds on behalf of the District.
(See Note 8 for further details.) :

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Invesiment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code {or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain prov1510ns of the Calrfomla Government Code (or the District’s investment policy,
where more restnctwe) lhat address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This
table ‘does not addréss investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the
provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California
Government Code or_the District’s investment policy.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type - Maturity . Of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations : 5 years- . Nope : None
Federal Agency Obligations - 5 years ' None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit : 5 years : 0% . None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A ' None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None

Investments Auﬂiérizéd by Debt Agr‘eements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy.
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee.
The table also identifies certam provisions of these debt agreemerits that address 1nterest rate risk, credit
risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage * Investment
Investment Type . Maturity Of Portiolio in One Issuer
Investment Coniracts - ~~ None None None
Money Market Mutval Funds ‘ N/A None None

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party, With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct
investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect
tnvestment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF),
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(3) Cash and Investments, continued e ' - S
The California Government Code and the Distriet’s mvestment pohcy do not contain legal or policy
requ1rements that would limit the exposule to custodial credit risk for deposr[s or investments, other than
the fellowing provigion for deposuts The California Governmient Code quun es that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledomg securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state Jaw (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the"collateral pool must équal-at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies.: Cahforma Taw also allows financial institutions to secure District
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a .value of 150% of the secured public
deposits. The District had deposits with bank balances of $7,305,164 Of the bank balances, up to
$100,000 is federally insured and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code;
however, the collateralized securities are not held in the District’s name.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fand (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LATF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an ,
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value Y
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate

risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows

from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to matdrity evenly over time as
necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and ligquidity needed for operations. Information about

the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the foliowing table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity date:

Investment maturities as of June 30, 2008, were as follows: Maturity
12 Months
Investment Type ‘Amount ' Or Less
Federal Agency obligations $ 421,272 421,272
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 43,798,924 43,798,924
Cash with fiscal agent:
Investment contracts 7,810,311 7,810,311
Total %5 52,030,507 52,030,507
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Victorville Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(3) Cash and Investments, continued
Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year
end for each investment type.
Credif ratings as of JTune 30, 2008, were as follows: Minimum Exempt
Legal From Rated
Investment Type Amount Rating Disclosure AAA
Federal Agency obligations $ 421,272 AAA ¥ - 421,272
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 43,798,524 N/A 43,798,924 -
Cash with fiscal agent:
Investment contracts 7,810,311 N/A 7,810,311 -
Total - $ 52,030,507 $ 51,609,235 421,272
(4) Accounts Receivable - Water Sales and Services
The balance at June 30, consists of the following:
2008
Accounts receivable — water sales and services $ 1,844,186
t ’ ' Allowance for uncollectible accounts (200,000)
- Accounts receivable, net 3 1,644,186
(5) Deferred Charges
The balance at June 30, consists of the following:
2007 Additions Deletions ) 2008
2006 Assessment District 2R bonds $ 221,786 - (30,947) 190,839
2004 La Salle water rights note 9,796 - (2,218) 7,578
1998 Ceriificates of participation 321,069 - (18,795) 302,274
2006 Certificates of participation 217.116 - (7,486) 209,630
Deferred chargeé, net $ 768,767 - (59,4463 710321
{
N
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 Vidoiville Watef DREHet
Notes to thé Basic Financial Statements, continued

iy the Yeub Bnded e 3052008 — —— = — = = —

(6) Water Rights

The balance at June 30, consists of the following:

2007 Additions Deletions 2008
Waler rights §  11,245.075 . - 1 ],72.45,_0',75_
Accumulated amortization (2,072,411) 300 (727,753) (2,799,864}
Water riglits, net $ 9172664 300 (727,753) 8,445,211
(7) Capital Assets
Changes in capital assets for 2008, were as follows: Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2007 Transfers Transfers 2008
Non-depreciable assets: 7
Land and land rights 5,411,728 3,003,369 (15,169) 8,399,928
Constroction-in-process 16,861,019 12,463,653 (15.235,416) 14,089.256
Total non-depreciable assets 22,272,747 15,467,022 (15.250.585) 22.489.184
Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvments 12,585,625 3,117,219 (69,719) 15,633,125
Transmission and distribution system 126,872,629 17,940,261 (184,489) 144,628,401
Equpment and furniture 18,535,609 119,198 (1,§25,763) 17,929,044
Computers and communicaticns 3,038,332 6,290 (1,791,313) 1,253,309
Vehicles 2,217,503 39,130 {12,713) 2,243,980
Intangible assets 1,353.309 - (83,900} 1,269.409 “‘@
Taotal depreciable assets 165,003,067 21,222,098 (3.267,897) 182.957.268 =
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvments (2,791,457) (588,302) 48,783 (3.330,976)
Transmission and distribution system (33,985,574) (4,073,928) 59,907 (37,999,595}
Equpment and furnitire (5,950,464} (767,802) ©42,039 (6,076,227}
Computers and communications (2,259,536} (241,138) 1,531,592 (969,082)
Vehicles (1,161,271 (238,674) 11,832 (1,388,113}
Intangible assets {887,182) (382.227) - (1.269,409} -
Total accumulated depreciation (47,035,484) {6,292,071) 2.294,153 (51,033,402)
Total depreciable assets, net 117,967,583 14,930,027 {973.744) 131,923,866
Total capital assets, net 140.240.330 30,397,049 (16,224,329) 154,413,050

(8) Due to the City of Victorville

The City of Victorville pools its available cash for investment purposes. The District utilizes the City’s
cash and investment pooled funds to operate as a daily operating fund of the District to record and deposit
receipts and pay payables as they become due through the City’s financial accounting system. As of June
30, 2008, the District was iiable to the City for $12,448,258 for net amounts paid by the City from the

City’s cash and investment pooled funds on behalf of the District.

9y Compensated Absences

Changes in compensated absences for 2008, were as follows:

Balance Balance Current Long-term
2007 Earned Taken 2008 Portion Portion
$ 200,459 304,027 (327,750) 176,736 44,184 132,552
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Victorville Water District
Notes to the Basu: Financial Statements continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(10) Long-term Debt

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2008, were as foilows:

Balance Additions/ Principal Balance
2007 Deletions Payments 2008
Long-term debt:
2006 Refunding Improvement 2R bonds  § 3,860,000 - (425,000) 3,435.000
2004 La Salle water rights note 1,343,277 - {279,356) 1,063,921
1998 Certificates of participation 2,240,000 - (80,000) 2,160,000
2006 Certificates of participation 13,070,000 - {230.000) 12,840,000
Total Jong-term debt $ 20,513,277 - (1,014,356) 19,498,921
Less: Current portion (1 .014‘3563 o (1,054,959}
Total Non-current portion $ 19,498,921 18.443,962

Refunding Improvement Act Bonds, Series 2006, Assessment District 2R

On March 2, 2006, the Baldy Mesa Water District issued $4,070,000 in Refunding Improvement Bonds
Series 2006 at stated interest rates to refinance and refund the Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series
1989, Assessment District 2R, to fund a reserve fund for the Bonds and pay cost related to the issuance of
the Bonds. A total of $4,998,487 was deposited with an escrow agent to pay down the outstanding
principal, interest on the 1989 Series Refunding Improvement Bonds, The escrow agent purchased a
$4,998,487 U.S. Government security (SLGS) and depositéd it into an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the Refunding Improvement Bonds Series 1989,

As a result, the Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 1989, Assessment District 2R, are considered
defeased and the liability for those obligations has been removed from the financial statements. The Baldy
Mesa Water District completed the advance refunding to réduce the total debt service payments over the
next eight fiscal years by $283,563 and to obtain an economic gain of approximatety $197,553.

A special assessment has been levied on the property tax bill of those residents who reside within the
boundaries of Assessment District 2R to repay the debt service of this cbligation. Principal and interest
payments are due each September 2™ and interest only payments are due each March 2™, The future
annual debt service requirements for the Refundmg Improvement Bonds, Series 2006, Assessment
District 2R, are as follows: .

Year Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 440,000 126,214 566,214
2010 455,000 111,219 566,219
2011 470,000 95,258 565,258
2012 490,000 78,214 568,214
2013 505,000 58,347 563,347
2014-2015 1,075,000 47,850 1,122,850
Total $ 3,435,000 517,102 3,952,102
Less: current (440,000)

Total non-carrent  § 3,995,000
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(10) Long-term Debt, continued
1998 Certificates of Pa_r_g.‘icrpation.

The Baldy Mesa Water District issued 1998 Certificates of Participation of $2,850,000 at stated interest
rates ranging from 4.10% to 5.00% to finance public improvements within the Baldy Mesa Water District
service area. The annual debt service is a special limited obligation of the District payable from and
secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the District. Principal and interest payments are
dne cach August 1% and interest only payments are due each February 1%, Annual debt service
requirements for the Certificates of Participation are as follows:

Year . . Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 85,000 . 105,875 190.875
2010 - 90,000 101,500 191,500
2011 95,000 96,875 191,875
2012 95,000 92,125 187,125
2013 100,000 87.250 187,250
2014-2018 590,000 352,750 942,750
2019-2023 750,000 185,750 935,750
2024.2025 355,000 17,875 372,875
Total $ 2,160,000 1,040,000 3,200,000
Less: current (85,000

Total non-current  § 2,075,000

2006 Certificates of Parficipation o

On March 1, 2006, the Baldy Mesa Water District issued 2006 Certificates of Participation af stated
interest rates ranging from 3.20% to 5.00% to finance public improvements within the Baldy Mesa Water
District service area. The annual debt service is a special limited obligation of the District payable from
and secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the District. Principal and interest payments
are due cach August 1% and interest only payments are due each February 1%, Annual debt service
requirements for the Certificates of Participation are as follows:

Year Pi’incipﬂl Interest Total
2009 3 240,000 571,728 811,728
2010 245,000 563,602 808,602
2011 255,000 555,039 810,039
2012 265,000 546,002 811,002
2013 270,000 536,573 806,573
2014-2018 1,540,000 2,492,730 4,032,730
2019-2023 1,900,000 2,136,665 4,036,665
2024-2028 2,325,000 1,687,827 4,012,827
2029-2033 2,910,000 1,004,263 4,004,263
2034-2037 2,850,000 297.750 3,187,750
Totat $ 12,840,000 10,482,179 23,322,179
Less: current ) (240,000)

Total non-current  $ 12,600,000
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(10) Long-term Debt, continued

2004 La Salle Water Rights Note Payable

The Baldy Mesa Water District sighed a note payable for the purpose of financing the purchase of water
rights at an interest rate of 3.76%. The annual debt service is a special limited obligation of the Baldy
Mesa Water District payable from and secured by a pledge of and lien on the net revenues of the District.
Principal and interest payments are due each November 26" and May 26 Annual debt service

requirements for the note payable are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 289,959 37,303 327,262
2010 300,964 26,298 327.262
2011 312,386 14,876 327,262
2012 160,612 3,019 163,631
Total 1,063,921 81,406 1,145417

Less: Current (289,950} l .
Non-current  § 773,962
(11) Net Investment in Capital Assets

The balance at June 30, consists of the following: 2008
Capital assets — not being depreciated 22,489,184
. Capital assets — being depreciated, net. 131,923,866

5 ) Certificates of participation — current portion (325,000)
T Certificates of participa‘;}ion — non-current portion (14,675,000)
Net investment in capital assets 139,413,050
(12) Unrestricted Net Assets
The balance at June 30, consists of the following: 2008
— Nonspendable net assets: -

Materials and supplies inventory 361,731
_Prepaid expenses and dcposits_ 2,999,982
" Deferred charges, net 519,482
Water rights, net 8,445,211
Total nonspendable net assets 112,326,406
Unassigned net assets 19,903,502
Total unrestricted net assets 32,229,908
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension-Plan

Plan Description

The Czty on behalf of the District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System
(CalPERS) a cost-sharing mu]tl—empioyer deﬁned benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retireiment
and d1sab1hty behefits, annual cost-of- living ad}ustments and~death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and adninistrative agent for participating public
agencies within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by
state statute and the District. Copies of CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained form their
executive Office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA, 95814, '

Funding Policy

The contribution rate for plan members in the CalPERS 2.5% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan 8% of their
annual covered salary, The City on behalf of the District makes these contributions quuired of District
empioyees on their behalf and for their account. Also, the City on behalf of the District is required to
contribute the actuarially detérmined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members.
The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute, and the employer
contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS. The obligations of the District are
repaid to the City from the net revenues of the District throughout the year. Further information on the
Plan’s annual pension cost for the District’s employees is incorporated into the City’s overall CalPERS
annual obligation and the cost has not been separated out for the District.

(14) Post Employment Benefits

In addition to a pension plan, substantially all the prior Victor valley Water District’s employees may
become eligible for certain health care benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working as a
City employee of the District. These benefits are provided through an insurance 'company whose
premiums are based on benefits paid. The obligation to provide future benefits is unfunded; however, the
Victor Valley Water District had accrued $9,908,000 as of June 30, 2007 prior to the consolidation into
the Victorville Water District in anticipation of payment of these future benefits along with the adoption
of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Empleyers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, in {iscal year 2009.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45, unless the adopting entity plans to pre-
fund the actuarial calculated Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for these benefits into an irrevocable
trust fund to process payments for these retired employee beneficiaries; the ARC obligation (or liability}
is to be set at zero at the beginning of the transition (adoption). year. Therefore, the District has reversed
its estimated post employment benefits liability of $9,908,000 to a non-operating revenue account to zero
out the balance in preparation of adopting GASB Statement No. 45 on July 1, 2008.
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Victorville Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(15) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has purchased
various insurance policies to manage the potential liabilities that may occur from the previously named
sources and is a member of the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). The purpose of
the SDRMA 1is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess
insurance coverage. At June 30, 2008 the District participated in the liability and property programs of the
Authority as follows:

» General and auto lability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions, employment
practices liability and employee benefits liability: Total risk financing limits of $2.5 million,
combined single limit at $2.5 million per occurrence, subject to the following deductibles:

o $500/$1000 per occurrence for third party general liability property damage

o 50% co-insurance of cost expended by SDRMA, in excess of $10,000 up to $50,000, per
occurrence, for employment related claims, However, 100% of the cbligation will be
waived if certain criteria are met.

o The District purchased an additional $7.5 million excess coverage layer which increases the limits
on the insurance coverage noted above.

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage:

s Employee dishonesty coverage up to $400,000 per loss inchides pubhc employee dishonesty,
forgery or alteration and theft, disappearance and destruction coverage’s.

e Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if replaced withiﬁ two yearsr after .

the loss, otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $1.0 billion per
occurrence, subject to a $2,000 deductible per occurrence based on the replacement cost for the
scheduled property. :

» Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacemenf cost up to $100 million perr occurrence,
subject to 4 $1,000 deductible.

» Comprehensive and collision coverages on selected vehicles, with deductibles of $250/$500 or
$500/$1,000, as elected; ACV limits; fully self-funded by the SDRMA.

« Public officials personal liability up to $500,000 each occurrence, with an annual aggregate of
$500,000 per each elected/appointed official to which this coverage applies, subject to the terms,
conditions and exclusions as provided in the Memorandum of Coverages, deductible of $500 per
claim.

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage, continued:

s Workers’ compensation insurance up to California statutory limits for all work related
injuries/illnesses covered by California law and employer liability coverage, subject to the terms,
conditions and exclusions provided in the SDRMA Memorandum of Coverage.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amcunts in the last fiscal year and there were no
reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the year ending June 30, 2008. Liabilities are
recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated net of the respective insurance coverage.
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(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective
Gover nmental Accounfmg Srandar ds Board Statement No. 45

In-June 2004 the GASB issued Statement No 45 Accounfmg and Fmancr,al Reporting by Emplovyers for
Pastemployment Benefits Other Than . Pensions. - - 'This : Statement establishes standards for the
measuremment, recognition, and display of OPEB expense/expendltures and related liabilities (assets), note
disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial yeports of state
and local government employers. This statement s not effective until June 30, 2009. The District has not
determined the effect this Statement w111 have on its financial statement presentation.

Governmental Accounng Srandards Board Statement No. 49

In November 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations. This statement provides guidance on how to calculate and report the
costs and obligations associated with pollution cleanup efforts. This statement is not effective for this
Digtrict until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement is not expected to have a significant
impact on the presentation of the District’s financial statéments,

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 50

In May 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 25 and 27. This statement more closely aligns the financial reporting requirements for
pensions with those for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) and, in doing so, enhances information
disclosed in the notes to financial statements or presented as required supplementary information (RSI) by
pension plans and by employers that provide pension benefits. The reporting changes required by this
Statement amend applicable note disclosure and RSI requirements of GASB Statements No. 25 and 27, to
conform with requirements of GASB Statements No. 43 and 45. This statement is not effective for this
District until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement is not expected to have a significant
impact on the presentation of the District’s financial statements.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 51

In June 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible
Assets, This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions
be classified as capital assets. This statement is not effective for this District until the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010. This statement is not expected to have a significant impact on the presentation of the
District’s financial statements. |

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 53

In June 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instriments. This statement addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information
regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments. This statement is not
effective for this District until the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This staternent is not expected to have
a significant impact on the presentation of the District’s financial statements.
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Victorville Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(17) Commitments and Contingencies
Joint-Facilities Agreement — High Desert Power Project

The Victor Valley Water District had entered into a Water Service Agreement with the High Desert
Power Project, LL.C (HDPP) to provide water and water services to the HDPP and obtain a groundwater
storage agreement to store excess purchased water from the State Water Project in a groundwater storage
basin for extraction and use during interruptions in supply from the State Water Project. Also, this Water
Service Agreement presides over the injection, storage and delivery of stored water, including the
construction and operation of wells and related facilities to extract and transmit the water to the HDFP by
the District. The District has constructed wells, a booster station and an automatic control system (Project
Facilities) to control the delivery of stored water to the HDPP. These Project Facilities are being paid for
by the HDPP, but will remain the property of the District. The District has agreed to operate and maintain
these Project Facilities and maintain a Groundwater Storage Agreement to store excess purchased water.

Groundwater Storage Agreement — High Desert Power Project

The Victor Valley Water District had entered into a Groundwater Storage Agreement with the Mojave
Area Basin Watermaster to store 13,000 acre-feet of excess purchased water from the State Water Preject
in the Alto Subarea of the Mojave Basip Area. The District will only use this stored water for the HDPP
and will only use it when direct State Water Project supplies are unavailable. The District is purchasing
this excess water from the Mojave Water Agency, who has capacity rights in the State Water Project
aqueduct, and is being reimbursed from the HDPP for those purchases.

AB-1600 Connection Fees

The District has a policy that requires new development projects to pay fees equal to the cost of new
water facilities needed to provide service. In this way, existing water customers do not pay for new
development. These fees are commonly called AB-1600 Connection Fees, and if they are not expended
or committed within 5-years they must be returned. California Government Code 66000 regulates
connection fees charged on development projects to defray cost of “public facilities”, including “public
improvements”, “public services” and “community amenities”. For each new project the District
establishes what percentage of the project is due to new development (restricted percentage) and what is
needed to maintain or improve capacity for existing customers. As such, the District is committed to
using these funds for capital outlay cn new development projects.

Construction Contracts

The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or
modification of water facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The financing of such
construction contracts is being provided in part from the District’s 2006 Certificates of Participation and
the net revenues of the District,

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and [itigatien from outside parties.
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.
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Victorville Water District.
Combining Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2008
f Water Assessment
Assels District District 2R Total
Current assets: )
Cash and cash equivalents b 36,163,466 - 36,163,466
Accrued interest receivable 244,240 - 244,240
Restricted — cash and cash equivalents 21,951,261 790,626 22,741,887
Restricted — accrued interest receivable 106,343 - 106,343
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net 1,644,186 - 1,644,186
Accounts receivable — property taxes 29,925 - 20,925
Accounts receivable — state grants 381,254 - 381,254
Accounts receivable - other 1,092.604 - 1,092,604
Materials and supplies inventory 361,731 - 361,731
Prepaid expenses and deposits 2.999.982 - 2,595,982
Tolal current assets 64,974,992 790.626 65,765,618
Non-current assets:
Investments 421272 - 421,272
Assessments receivable - 3,152,843 3,152,843
- Deferred charges; net 519,482 190,838 710,321
Water rights, net 8,445,211 - 8445211
Capital assets, not being depreciated 22,489,184 - 22,489,184
Capital assets being depreciated, net 131,923,866 - 131,923,866
Total non-current assets 163,799,015 3,343,682 167,142,697
Total assets 228,774,007 4,134,308 232,908,315
Liabilities and Net Assets
e Current liabilities:
E‘ Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 2,359,365 200 2,358,565
. Accrued wages and related payables 149,460 - 149,460
Due to the City of Victorville 12,830,205 (382,007 12,448,258
Customer advances, deposits and deferred revenue 3,972,809 - 3,572,809
Accroed interest payable 284,903 44,492 325,395
Long-term liabilities — due within one year:
Compensated absences 44,184 - 44,184
Bonds payable - 440,000 440,000
Note payable 289,959 - 288,959
- Certificates-of-participation payable 325,000 - 325,000
Total current Habilities 20,255,945 102,685 20,358,630
Non-cumrent habilities:
Long-term liabilities — due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 132,552 - 132,552
Bonds payable - 2,995,000 2,985,000
Note payable 773,962 - 773,962
Certificates-of-participation payable 14,675,600 - 14,675,000
Total non-current labiljties 15,581,514 2,995,000 18,576,514
Total liabilities 35,837,459 3,097,685 38,935,144
Net assets:
Net investment in capital assels 139,413,050 - 139,413,050
Restricted for capital asset construction 22,057,604 - 22,057,604
Restricied for debt service - 1,036,623 1,036,623
Unrestricted 31,465,804 - 31,465.894
Total net assets 192,936,548 1,036,623 103,973,171
‘ Total liahilities and net assets § 228,774,007 4,134,308 232,508,315
i
N
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Victorvillé Water District
Combining Staterfenit Reventes, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

o For the Year Ended June 30,2008 —— ———

Water Assessment
~.District .. . . . District2R .. . . Total
Operating revenues: .
_Water consumption sles _ $ 13,623,753 - 13,623,753
Monthly meter service charge 6,477,785 - 6,477,785
* Other charges and services ’ 1,437.022 - 1,437.022
Total operating revenucs 21,538,55&) - Al ,533,560
Operating expenses:
Source of supply: :
Imported water supply purchases 4,379,917 - 4,375,917
Pumping 3,048,207 - 3,048,207
. Water produection 085515 - 985,515
Water treatment, trf_msmjssion and distribution 4,128,550 - 4,128,550
Engineering services ' 1,143,277 - 1,143,277
Water conservation 347,895 - 347,895
Cuslomer service 2,494,832 - 2,494,832
General and administrative 4,558,612 - 4,558,012
Total operating expenses - 21,086.805 - 21,086,805
Operating income before depreciation and amortizagion 451,755 - 451,755
Depreciation and amortization (7.019.824) - {7,019,824)
Operating loss (6,568.069) - (6.568.009)
Non-operating revenue{expense):
Property taxes 1,204,485 - 1,294,485
Invesiment earnings 2,784,977 52,679 2,837,656
Arsenic surcharge 801,399 - 801,399 ! Y
Interest expense — iong-term debt (700.,448) (164,631) (865.079) R
Amortization of deferred charges (28,499) (30,947) {59,446)
Post employment benefits adjustment 2,908,000 - 9,908,000
Loss on sale/disposition of capital assets, net (1,110,570 - (1,110,570)
Loss on sale/disposition of surplus material, net (515,794) - {519,794)
Other non-operating revenues 30,468 6,567 37.035
Other non-operating expenses (50.535) (3,124) {53.659)
Total non-gperating expenses, net 12,409,483 (139,456} 12,270.027
Net income(Joss) before capital contributions 5,841,414 (139,456) 5,701,958 —
Capital contributions:
Connection fees 3,711,863 - 3,711,863
Alternate water source fees 1,650,256 . - 1,656,256
Developers and others 5,335,180 - 5,335,180
State prants 308,093 T 308.093
Capital contributions : 11,011,392 - 11.011,352
Change in net assets 16,852,806 (139,456) 16,713,350
Net assets, beginning of year 176,083,742 1,176,079 177,259,821
Net assets, end of year $  192,936.548 1,036,623 193,973,171
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matfers Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Victorville Water District
Victorville, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Victorville Water District (District), a subsidiary
district of the City of Victorville (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, and have issued
our report thereon dated April 11, 2009, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our andit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basts for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Districi’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting,

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent-or detect
missfatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District’s financial statements that is more
than inconsequential’ will not be prevented or detected by the District’s internal control. A material
weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the District’s internal control. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting
was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests-disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Gaovernment Auditing Standards.,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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